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CENTRAL ADMINISTRATIVE TRIBUNAL ALLAHABAD 
BENCH ALLAHABAD 

***** 
(THIS THE~~ DAY OF _ _l:J Q U , 2010) 

Hon 'ble Dr.K.B. S. Rajan, Member (JJ 
Hon'ble Mr. S.N. Shukla, Member (AJ 

Original Application No.916 of.2003 
(U / s 19, Administrative Tribunal Act, 1985) 

S. K. Awasthi 
S/o Sri V.N. Awasthi, 
R/ o Astik Nagar 
(Behind Bombay Dharam Kanta), 
Rathpur Road, Raibareilly, 
Peon (Ade sh pal), 
Employees State Insurance Corporation 
Local Office -: Shahibabad, 
Ghaziabad. 
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. Applicant 
Present for Applicants Shri. B. C. Naik, Advocate 

Versus 

1. Union of India, through its Secretary, Ministry of Labour, 
Central Secretariat, 
New Delhi . 

. 2. Employees State Insurance Corporation 
Panchdeep Bhawan, Kotala Road, 
New Delhi. · 

3. Addl. Commissioner (P & A) 
Employees State Insurance Corporation 
Panchdeep Bhawan, Kotala Road, 
New Delhi. 

4. Regional Director, 
Employees State Insurance Corporation 
Sarvodaya Nagar, Kanpur. 

Present for Respondents : sn« P. K. fandey, Advocate 
. Respondents 

ORDER 

(Delivered by Hon. Dr. K. B. S. Rajan, Member-J) 

The facts of the case as per the applicant are as under:- 

(a) The applicant was appointed in the Employees State Insurance 

.vrporation on 11.6.1982 as a peon. When the applicant was 



posted at Sandila a charge sheet dated 16.7.1998 was served 

requiring him to submit his written explanation (Annexure No. 3). 

The charge sheet reads as under:- 

~ - 1 

'lTl! fc/i ~ 4,- ~ ~ 31cfreft -;r ~ c/512/f i:14 ~ ?T\RT W 
~ lftcprc;'(/ ~ # ~ 6.7.1992 ?l 8.7.96 fTcp q?:IJ..Jr/c/5 qi" [Jc[ W ffl 

· ~ §<l ~ 16.2.96 c/51 4,- ~ cp:rf_ flfi:!j/({/rj ~ ~ c/572/f i:14 
¢ 'll ~ ~ ~ 600/- "eft ~ 'fTcfi ~ "([/ 489-623912 l[RT 
ta * J1T7fT ~ ~ & ?'<Td' c/51 ~ qi" ~ * flfi:!j/({/rj ffe1E!cp #t 
q,rf qi" ~ fqi frlcp/2/fl flfi:!j/({/rj ~ (~ ~ ?T\RT efJ7rr ~ 

ref ~ 01 "fWa "eft I 
~ ~ ~ #t vwo¢o31cff€it ¢ ~ qJr<l "<'lr2JP!ro1 "eft 0"ift 

c/51 ~ °t ffP!T f.?/7r,r ¢ ~ ¢ 31Tf.RUT ¢ "fi!!rRta 6 I irrer !t ~ 
?T\RT -wrr ~{~ ~ & WIT "eft wif) {c)P!Jt4<! 1959 zrm ~ ¢ 
Fctf.:r7/l1 23 ¢ ~ qf&ff ~ #rfcm WIT~ A4JtJqcifJ, 1964 ¢ _{.ppr 

3(1) (rrrr) "cf 3(1) (qTT([_) cfiT i3rotlr/ t I 

~-2 

'lTl! fcli ~ 47- ~ ~ 31cfreft -;r ~ c/572/f i:14 ~ ?T\RT W 
~ lftcprc;i!J ~ # oW 31cffel" # q?:IJ..Jr/c/5 ¢ [Jc[ w c/5Tll q)rrf s"C! VEff 

'T(l!JfR ~ 'lTl! fciil1r rcficff! ~ 19.2":il96, 20.2.96, 22.2.96 q 23uza96 c/51 
~- ?ii[{ * ~ ?"F ffP!T ffl ~ ~ m w oW ~ 1 

. qiffl' (7) W "lfff!TffiT fc!R7 I 

~ ~ ~ #t ~ ~ 31cfreft ¢ ~ qJr<l 0tr2JP!ro1 "eft 
qi'lft ~ t I am f.wlf ¢ ~ ¢ 31Tf.RUT ¢ ~ t 1 ~ tt ~ 
?T\RT -wrr f.?/7r,r (~ ~ & WIT_ "eft wif) fclRlfl1, 1959 zrm ~ ¢ 
Fctf.:r7/l1 23 ¢ ~ qf&ff ~ #rfcm WIT~ A2J'i/q({J, 1964 ¢ {.ppr 

3(1) (rrrr) "cf 3(1) (qTT([_) cfiT ~ °t I 

~-3 

'lTl! fcli ~ #f ~ ~ ~ -;r qqfw ~ c/574/i:14 # qqfw [Jc[ 
w ffl ffl qi" ~ eftfirrr "fZfferllT cfiT ~ ?TflTlTFf ?RR tg ~ 
?rirr ?l fliTef - 28 'JRcR P/4)00) c/51 # I 

(b) The applicant has denied each and every charge. During 

enquiry two witnesses were examined and nine documents were 

cited by the management. The applicant in his defence cited four 

iJ/ctocuments and examined two witnesses. However, as the date 
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fixed for enquiry on 23.1.2001 and 9.2.2001 could not be 

communicated and intimated to the applicant, he could not attend 

. the proceeding and the enquiry officer completed the enquiry 

proceedings ex-parte closed the defense and ultimately submitted 

his report to the respondent no. 4 after holding the charges proved 

against the applicant. The findings are:- 

Charge - 1, I hold that Shri S.K.Awasthi, the C.O. has 

misappropriated Rs. 600 /- on 16.2.1996 by encasing cheque 

No. A/ 489 623912 by misguiding Sh. Satpal Verma the then 

Local Office Manager and sent a complaint to . the then 

Director (Vig) E.S.I. Corporation, New Delhi against Shri 

Verma to save himself and thus exhibited lack of integrity 

and committed an act unbecoming of a Corporation employee 

thereby- violated Rule 3(1) (i) and 3(1) (ii) of CCS (Conduct) 

Rules. 

Charge=- 2 and -3 : Proved (Annexure No. 4). 

· (c) The applicant made a detailed representation. The respondent 

No. 4, on the basis of the finding of the enquiry officer imposed 

the punishment of compulsory retirement on 18.1.2002 

(Annexure No. 5). Service of the applicant was terminated vide 

order dated 21.1.2002 (Annexure No. 6). 

(d) The applicant filed department appeal before the Director 

Administration (Annexure No - 7) .. Respondent No. 3 was in 

agreement with the grounds mentioned by the applicant in 

the appeal and after holding that reasonable opportunity of 

hearing was not given to the applicant and the order of 

punishment is in violation of principle of natural justice set 

V,side the order of punishment and reinstated the applicant 
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and the service of the Corporation and directed him to join 

his duty within 7 days (Annexure No. 8). 

(e) The applicant was reinstated and was posted in the local 

office of the Corporation at Mohan Nagar vide order dated 

14.8.2002. However, the Disciplinary authority again passed 

- the order of compulsory retirement against the applicant only 

after a week time i.e. 26.8.2002 (Annexure No. 11). After the 

order dated 7.8.2002 neither any enquiry was held nor any 

opportunity of hearing given to the applicant nor any 

explanation has been called from him. 

(f) Applicant preferred a departmental appeal to the respondent 

· No. 3 on 10.9.2002 (Annexure No. 12). As no decision was 

taken on, he made a representation on 6.1.2003 (Annexure 

No. 13). The respondent No.3 ignoring his own order and 

finding dated 7.8.2002 dismissed the appeal filed by the 

applicant and confirmed the order of punishment dated 

26.8.200l2. 
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2. In this O.A. the applicant has claimed that the impugned 

orders dated 26.08.2002 passed by respondent No. 4 and order 

dated 05.04.2003 passed by respondent No. 3 may be quashed and 

the applicant may be deemed to be in. continuous service with all 

benefits .. 

3. The respondents contest the O.A. Most of the facts have not 

been disputed. However, in so far as non intimation of hearing on 

two dates, i.e. 23-01-2001 and 09-02-2001, vide para 4.5 of the 

OA, they have denied the same. The disciplinary authority had 

. passed the order. impugned herein vide Annexure Annexure 1 was, 

~ccording to them, in accordance with the .direction$ given by the 

·, 
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· appellate authority, vide his order dated 07-08-2002 (Annexure 8, 

wherein he had directed, "I also direct the .Regional Director, 

Kanpur to pass de-riovo final order without taking into account the 

previous penalty." 

I \ 

4. The applicant had filed a supplementary affidavit, with 

various annexures most of which are part of the relied upon 

documents in the inquiry proceedings. He has also analyzed such 

evidences and depositions to substantiate that the inquiry was 'not 

properly conducted. 
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5. Arguments were advanced by the counsel for the parties and 

the same were heard. The counsel for the applicant argued that 

. 
the disciplinary authority had pre-determined the penalty and to 

gain support he had referred to the previous penalty and it was 

precisely for that reason that the appellate authority had remanded 

the matter back to. the disciplinary authority but the disciplinary 

authority agam imposed the same penalty of compulsory 

. · retirement, which is illegal.. • I 

6. Counsel for the respondents submitted that there is 

absolutely no legal lacuna in the procedure followed in this · case 

either by the inquiry officer or the disciplinary authority or the 

appellate authority and hence, the OA is liable to be dismissed. 

7. Arguments were heard and documents perused. The 

applicant had been charge sheeted with three charges, one with 

reference to the alleged embezzlement of Rs 600 /-, the other 

signing the attendance register on those days . also when the 

applicant did not attend the 'iffice and the third related to 

~uthorized filling of form No. 28 m regard to the 'absention of 
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the insured person'. . The charges having been denied,· regular 

inquiry was conducted and the applicant participated. When after 

the closure of the prosecution evidence, notice was given to the 

applicant, the acknowledgment of which was also obtained and 

·sent to inquiry authority, the inquiry officer proceeded further and 

the inquiry report reveals that there is full length discussion in 

respect of the depositions made, including those of the defence 

witnesses. The applicant had not attended the inquiry on the last 

two dates of hearing and hence the proceedings were conducted ex 

parte. The disciplinary authority passed a comprehensive order 

imposing the penalty of compulsory retirement, vide Annexure A-5, 

and the same was appealed, when the appellate authority finding 

that reference to earlier penalty was made in the said Annexure A­ 

S, remanded the matter back to the disciplinary authority for issue 

of de novo final order. Meanwhile the applicant was reinstated. It 

is after the same, that the disciplinary - authority without any 

reference to the past conduct, imposed the same penalty. The 

appellate authority also had analyzed the entire matter and his 

order is also equally comprehensive. 

, ·1 
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8. There has been no legal lacuna m the conduct of the 

proceedings. The decision making process has been found to be 

strictly in accordance with the prescribed procedure. The absence 

of the applicant, despite due notice by the inquiry officer, disabled 

the inquiry authority to ask the applicant the mandatory questions 

on the closure . of the prosecution evidence. Two such 

opportunities were granted, which the applicant chose not to 

utilize. Thus, no legal flaw could be discerned in the procedure 

. vopted by the LO. 'Again, in so far as the disciplinary authority's 
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order is concerned, even in the earlier order which had been set 

aside, the Discipli~ary authority had not considered the past 

conduct in proving the charges. It is at the time when the question 

of imposition of penalty for the proved charge was under 

consideration that the disciplinary auth?rity had taken into 

consideration the past penalty and imposed compulsory retirement. 

Though the appellate authority vide Annexur A- 7 took the above as 

legally not correct, strictly speaking the disciplinary authority could 

well take into account such past conduct for the limited purpose of 

arriving at a decisiorion the quantum of penalty. The Apex court 

had occasion to consider the issue in a very recent case of Union of 

India v. Bisharnber Das D~gra,(2009) 13 sec 102, and considered a good 

number of decisions and arrived at the conclusion that the 

disciplinary authority could well take into consideration the past 

conduct while deciding quantum of penalty to be imposed on a 

delinquent employee in the wake of a proved charge.: The Apex 

Court has held in that case as under:- 

28. In Govt. of A.P. v. Mohd. Taher Ali-his Court rejected the 

contention that unless the past conduct is a part of charge-sheet, it 

cannot be taken into consideration while imposing the punishment 

observing that: 

"5 .... there can be no hard-and-fast rule that merely because 

the earlier misconduct has not been mentioned in the charge-sheet 

it cannot be taken into consideration by the punishing authority. 

Consideration of the earlier misconduct is often [necessary] only to 

reinforce the opinion of the said authority," (emphasis supplied) 

Inf act in Ta her Ali case the argument had been advanced that if 

the disciplinary authority wanted to consider the past service , 

record of the employee, it should be a part of the charge-sheet. 

Vaugh in K. Manche Gowda this Court said that it should be so 
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indicated in the second shoui-cause notice only for the purpose of 

imposing punishment. Thus it is not necessary that it should be a 

part of the charge-sheet. 

29. In Colour-Chem Ltd. v. A.L. Alaspurkar this Court 

considered the statutory rules which itself provided as what can 

be taken into consideration while imposing the punishment and it 

also referred · to the consideration of the past record of the 

employee. 

30. In view of the above, it is evident that it is desirable that 

the delinquent employee 'mau be informed by the disciplinary 

authority that his past conduct would be taken into consideration 

while imposing the punishment. But in case of misconduct of grave 

nature or indiscipline, even in the absence of statutory rules, the 

authority may · take into consideration _ the indisputable past 

conduct/ service record of the employee for adding the weight to 

the decision of imposing the punishment if the facts of the case so 

require. 

9. The order of the appellate authority vide Annexure A-2 is also 

comprehensive and met all the substantial and relevant points 

raised in the appeal. ·There appears no '--legal flaw at all in the 

conduct of inquiry. The Apex Court has held that the extent of 

judicial review m a disciplinary proceeding is confined to the 

decision making process and not decision. Of course, it is only 

when the penalty imposed is shockingly disproportionate that the 

Tribunal could well consider the same and here again for deciding 

the quantum of penalty, the case has to be referred to _the 

administrative authorities except in very rare cases where it could 

impose appropriate penalty. It is appropriate to refer to one of the 

latest decisions of the Apex court in the case of - UT of Dadra & Nagar 

/ _ ;!51-veli v. Gulabhia M. I,ad,(2010) 5 sec· 775, 

[lL/ held as under.- 
: wherein the Apex Court has 

... _ ... 
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11. In United Commercial Bank v. P. C. Kakkar.; this Court 

on review of a long line of cases and the principles of 

judicial review of administrative action under English lau: 

summarised the legal position in the following words: 

"11. The common thread running through in- all these 
decisions is that the court should not interfere with the 
administrator's decision unless it was illogical or suffers 
from procedural impropriety or was · shocking to the 
conscience of the court, in the sense that it was in 
defiance of logic or moral standards. In view of what 
has been stated in Wednesbury case the court would 
not go into the correctness of the choice made by the 
administrator open to him and the court should not 
substitute its decision to that of the administrator. The 
scope of'judicial review is limited to the deficiency in 
decision-making process and not the decision. 
12. To put it differently, unless the punishment imposed 
by the disciplinary authority or the appellate authority · 
shocks the conscience of the court/tribunal, there is no 
scope for interference. Further, to shorten litigation it 
may, in exceptional and rare cases, impose appropriate 
punishment by recording cogent reasons in support 
thereof In the normal course if the punishment imposed 
is shockingly disproportionate it would be appropriate to 

, direct the disciplinary authority or the appellate 
authority to reconsider the penalty imposed. 

·1 

10. In~ the instant case, the appellate authority mentioned that 

the applicant deserves a graver punishment but on leniency being 

shown, punishment of compulsorily retirement was imposed. 

11. In view of the above, we do not find any merit in the OA and 

hence, the OA ~s dismissed. No costs. 

;;:-~-~ --­ Member (A) ~~mber (J) 

/Shashi/ 


